ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COWM TTEE
April 11, 2002
1:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Kim El ton

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 348
"An Act relating to insurance for and work on certain notor
vehicle repairs; and providing for an effective date.”

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
SB 348 — No previous action to record.
W TNESS REAQ STER

Ms. Annette Deal

Staff to Senator Cowdery

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SB 348

Ms. Sandy Bass- Core
Coalition Auto Repair Equality (CARE)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 348

M . Raynond Warner, Legislative Counsel
Certified Auto Parts Associ ation (CAPA)
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 348

Ms. Eileen Sohile

Keyst one Aut onotive
Nat i onal Auto Body Parts Associ ation

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 11, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Qpposes SB 348

M. John George

Nat i onal Assn. O [|ndependent Insurers
3328 Fritz Cove Rd.

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 348

M . Ral ph Seekins

Al aska Aut o Deal ers Associ ati on
Seekins Ford Lincoln Mercury
Fai r banks, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

M. Brian Keen

NAPA

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 348

M. Bill Hol den

General Mdtors Corporation

Detroit, M

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

Ms. Beth Rose

Consol i dat ed Aut o Body

315 Thomas Circle

Anchor age, AK 99508

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

M. Rick Mrrison

Al aska Aut o Deal ers Associ ation
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supports SB 348

Ms. Gail Barnes, Editor
fuel |l i ne.com
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Opposes SB 348

M. Matt Thorpe
Anchor age, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

M . Wayne Spencer

Al aska Sal es and Service

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 11, 2002



M. Stan Petito

Cal Worthington Ford of Al aska
Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

M. Ron Jones

CARQUEST Auto Parts

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 348

M. Steve Al w ne

Al aska Aut o Deal ers Associ ation

8725 Mallard St.

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 348

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02- 15, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN JOHN COANDERY cal l ed the Senate Transportation Conmttee
neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Senators WIken, Ward, Elton and
Chai rman Cowdery were present. The comm ttee took up SB 348.

#SB 348
SB 348- MOTOR VEHI CLE REPAI RS

M5. ANNETTE DEAL, staff to Senator Cowdery, described the purpose
of the legislation as follows.

SB 348 relates to consuner repairs on individual’s vehicles for
crash or collision circunstances. It addresses two types of parts
avail abl e, the original manufactured parts and the after market
parts. In the case of notor vehicle repairs, consunmers are
sonetinmes not provided with full information. Sone types of
repl acenent crash parts nay be of inferior quality or may void
the warranty for adjacent parts. Alternative parts can also
create unnecessary safety risks from inproper fitting, yet sone
i nsurance conpani es direct the use or installation of parts other
than the original parts. Sonme replacenent crash parts are
conparable to those manufactured or distributed by the origina
carnmaker. Sonetinmes professionals have found others to be
inferior in terns of fit, finish and quality. SB 348 guarantees
that there is a warranty for after market crash parts when they
are used in repairs and it also reinforces the consuner’s right
to have a choice through the consent |anguage. Therefore, SB 348
gives the consunmer a choice, when a vehicle is in its original
manuf acture year or three years thereafter, of using after market

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 11, 2002



parts or the original parts. The vehicle repair shop nust
di scl ose on the invoice when after nmarket parts are used.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked what tinmeframe the bill applies to.

M5. DEAL replied that SB 348 specifies that it applies to the
vehi cl es manufactured that year and three years after. Consent is
not required of the owner if the vehicle is older than that.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY noted the presence of Senator Taylor. He then
t ook public testinony.

M5. SANDY BASS- CORE, representing the Coalition for Auto Repair
Equality (CARE), infornmed nenbers that the Coalition represents
conpanies involved in the auto repair market. Those conpanies in
Al aska are NAPA, M das, CARQUEST, [indisc. - paper shuffling].
These conpanies conbined are found in over 130 |ocations. The
Coalition opposes SB 348 because nany simlar pieces of
| egi sl ati on have been anended and include car parts as well. The
Coalition has found that car dealers and auto body shops have
i ntroduced nmuch of this |legislation because the car dealer parts
cost twice as nmuch as the after market parts, even though after
mar ket parts are identical. M. Bass-Core said, regarding the
warranty issue, in the 1970s, the U S. Senate passed preenptive
| egislation that prohibits warranties from being tied to repair
so if an after nmarket part is used on a vehicle, it cannot
invalidate any of the original equipnent manufacturers (OEM
parts or the car’s warranty (Magnuson Bond Act). Eighty percent
of the after market business is repeat business and studi es show
that even COEM bunpers do not wthstand a 5 nph crash. The
Coalition’s main concern is that many of its custoners are | ow
i ncome people who often live in rural areas and they cannot
afford to pay the car dealer prices or the higher insurance
prem um

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked Ms. Bass-Core to fax her witten testinony
to the commttee. He then asked if 80 percent of the after narket
busi ness she referred to applies to cars that are three or fewer
years ol d.

M5. BASS-CORE said that is correct. The Coalition is considering
the newer vehicles, as well as the ol der vehicles.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if the 80 percent pertains to all cars or
all parts or to the last three of four-year old cars only.

MS. BASS-CORE said the 80 percent of return custoners that the
after market has covers all vehicles, not just the ol der cars.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 11, 2002



CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked, “So you don’t really know the figure that
we’'re tal king about, you know, all vehicles versus the |last three
years that probably 20, 25 year old vehicles still on the road,
s0?”

MS. BASS- CORE said the average age of a vehicle is 15 years. Mst
peopl e who drive those vehicles don't want to spend nbney on new
cars.

CHAl RMAN COWDERY thanked Ms. Bass-Core for her testinony and
asked Raynond Warner to testify.

MR. RAYMOND WARNER, |egislative counsel to the Certified Auto
Parts Association (CAPA), inforned nenbers that he was testifying
on behalf of Jack Ellis, Executive Director of CAPA, the Director
of Public Affairs for the Consuner Federation of Anerica, and
aut hor of The Car Book, prepared in cooperation with the Center
for Auto Safety. M. Warner explained that CAPA is a non-profit
organi zation that oversees testing and inspection prograns that
certify the quality of parts used for auto body repairs and gave
the foll ow ng testinony.

We are here to conment on SB 348 and we appreciate this
opportunity. CAPA is a non-profit organization, which
oversees testing inspection prograns that certifies the
quality of parts used for auto body repairs. CAPA' s
goal is to pronote price and quality conpetition in the
crash parts industry, thereby reducing the cost of
crash repairs to consunmers w thout sacrificing quality.
W sinply establish standards for conpetitive parts in
order to insure their equivalency to [indisc.] parts
and provide consuners, auto body shops, and insurance
conpanies with an objective nethod of evaluating their
functi onal equival ency.

Car conpanies spend mllions of dollars to discredit
after market parts to scare consuners, [indisc.] body
shops, and intimdate legislatures into protecting
their nonopoly with thinly veiled legislation |ike SB
348. This state-by-state approach has been adopted by
car conpanies and collision repairers because they were
unsuccessful in achieving the sane result on a national
| evel when they tried to alter federal design caps in
1993. Supporting this legislation wll, in effect,
pronote a nonopoly and destroy the free narket that
Al aska consuners have traditionally enbraced.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 11, 2002



CAPA strongly believes that consuners should have the
right to have their vehicles repaired to pre-accident
condition. W also believe in disclosure, however if
disclosure is inportant for [indisc.] cosnetic crash
parts, then it should be even nore inportant for
conplicated and safety related nechanical parts.
Interestingly, nost nmechanical auto repair shops are
against this type of disclosure requirenent. Consuners
should also have the right to know that the vehicle
warranty is not covered on non-car conpany parts.
However, tinme use of an after market part to the
voiding of a new car warranty is definitely fraud
agai nst federal law, as Sandy pointed out.

What is at stake here is consuner protection, inherent
in a truly free and responsi ble marketplace. Wat car
conpani es and body shops are asking this commttee to
do is attenpt to |legislate out of business an industry
which is forcing themto offer conpetitive parts. Each

year — when this conmttee endorses this kind of
| egislation, we’'re basically saying that the benchmark
for quality is the car conpanies and | think all you

need to do is go to your attorney general’s office and
find out how many citizens conplain about car conpany
quality and the nunber of cars that are recalled. Thank
you sir, for giving us this opportunity.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY said he would like to point out that no dealer
has ever approached him and that he did not know this issue
existed until he heard of consuner conplaints and that he did not
introduce this bill at the request of anyone.

SENATOR WARD asked if the parts that are not nmanufactured by the
| arge car manufacturing conpanies use the sanme research and
devel opnment st andar ds.

MR. WARNER expl ained that sonme after narket parts are certified
by CAPA and sone are not. By and l|large, the nunber of parts
certified by CAPA is the smallest percentage, primarily because
there is very little incentive for manufacturers to get their
parts certified if legislation simlar to SB 348 is passed. That
| egi sl ati on does not encourage certification.

SENATOR WARD asked if there would be a “gap” between a fender
manuf actured by the Ford Mdtor Conpany that was tested and the
same nodel fender manufactured by a different conpany in China.

MR. WARNER said the manufacturers of certified parts are required
to participate in a vehicle-testing programin which the part is

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 11, 2002



installed in a vehicle and tested.

SENATOR WARD cl arified that he was wondering if the part nmade in
Chi na woul d go through the sane kind of testing the original part
di d.

MR. WARNER said it woul d.

SENATOR ELTON said he didn't realize there is such a “bl ood feud”
between the different parties involved in this issue. He asked
M. Warner what in this bill goes beyond sinply notifying the
consuner what kind of parts are going to be used.

MR. WARNER said notification to a consuner that an after market
part will be used inplies there is something wong with the after
mar ket part when conpared to an original equipnent manufactured
part.

SENATOR ELTON said he sees notification as enpowering the
consuner to nake a choi ce.

MR. WARNER replied, “Wen the consuner is told that, for sone
reason, one part is different fromanother and will not serve the
sane purpose, that is a clear direction to that consuner that
there is something wong with the part.”

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked M. Warner to fax his testinmony to the
commttee and asked the next witness to testify.

M5. EILEEN SOHI LE, representing Keystone Autonotive Industries
and the National Auto Body Parts Association, said that regarding
the question of whether disclosure is discrimnatory, SB 348 goes
further than that, it speaks to consent of after narket parts.
Keystone’'s problem with consent is that it is not only for four
to five years, but consent suggests inferiority of after market
parts. She noted that nmany nmanufacturers that nake parts for
Keystone also nmke parts for the car conpanies. Keystone’s
manuf acturers neet the sanme standards. There is absolutely no
incentive for consuners to choose Keystone’'s parts when having a
car repaired as the result of an accident in a body shop because
the consuner is not paying out of pocket. SB 348 will |egislate
away the industry in Al aska, even though there is a demand for
after market parts in Al aska.

M5. SOHILE said that Keystone actually offers better warranties
than the car conpanies. Legislation is not necessary to require
Keystone to provide warranties. She repeated that SB 348 wl|
stifle conpetition, suggests there is no room for conpetition

and that any safety issues would surround workmanship
(installation) and not the parts.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 11, 2002



MR JOHN GEORGE, representing the National Association of
| ndependent Insurers (NAIIl), said that NAIl's primary goal is to
keep insurance prices affordable, to have quality repairs done on
autonobiles that it wll <continue to insure, and to Kkeep
custoners happy. SB 348 is preferable to the original version,
which was conbined with the credit issue. He stated that
insurance is a very conpetitive business.

CHAI RVAN COADERY interrupted M. George to note that SB 348 w ||
require the consuner to be notified of the type of parts to be
used, it does not require insurance conpanies to use certain
types of parts. He pointed out that after market parts cannot be
required in Mnnesota and rates have not risen there.

MR, GEORGE said he would have to look at the situation in
M nnesota as a nunber of factors affect rates. He stated that
Hawai i mandates use of after nmarket parts and if a consumer uses
an original part, the consunmer nust pay the difference. He said
SB 348 goes a long way in nmeeting sone of the objections NAIIl had
to an earlier bill.

CHAIRN%N CONDERY said the two bills addressed two different
i ssues.

SENATOR WARD asked if NAIl rates in Hawaii have been | owered
since Hawaii enacted that | aw.

MR. CGECRCE said he believes the rates in Hawaii are actually
com ng down.

SENATOR WARD asked if that is the result of the Hawai
| egi sl ati on.

MR. CGEORGE responded that he is not aware of when that |aw was
enact ed.

SENATOR WARD asked M. George to get that information for the
comm ttee.

MR, CGEORGE said that there are so many factors that affect
insurance rates, particularly |osses, but that he would get
Senat or Ward an answer.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented the single biggest factor that affects
rates is the current state of the stock nmarket and reinvestnent
of reserves.

M5. DEAL infornmed commttee nenbers that according to the US
General Accounting Ofice (GAO, consuner approval is required in
several states, Hawaii being one. She stated, “...and | have
anot her chart from the U S. GAO again, from Novenmber 2000, and

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 11, 2002



t hi ngs coul d have changed in the |last year and a half, but Hawaii
seens to require disclosure statenents, they seem to — consuner
consent is required, an estimte. There are several factors. In
fact they're one of the nore stringent states on this graph that
| have of all 50 states. Once again, this is from Novenber 2000
so it may not be conpletely current but it is fromthe U S. GAQ
which | consider a pretty reliable source so...”

MR, GEORGE offered to get nore information for commttee nenbers.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY repeated that he did not intend to take action
on SB 348 at this neeting.

MR GEORGE said it is true that the investnent rate that
i nsurance conpanies get plays a major factor in the conpanies

profitability. A conpany can underwite at nore than a 100
percent loss ratio if investnent returns are high. Now that they
are not getting high returns, they nust get noney to pay the
claims from the premiuns. He noted the insurance conpanies are
not allowed to invest great anpbunts in the stock market. The
Division of Insurance determ nes what they can invest in. Even
so, their investnent returns are | ower than they were previously.

SENATOR ELTON said the previous witness said that after market
parts can be warranted and that SB 348 requires that if the
insured requests the insurer nust provide a warranty for after
mar ket crash parts. He stated if, in fact, sone after market
crash parts are under warranty that it does not seem |like an
onerous requirenent on the insurance conpany to require a
warranty for the part.

MR, CGEORGE said a pass-through warranty is one in which an
i nsurance conpany specifies that a body shop use a part that has
a warranty and so Senator Elton’s argunent naekes sense. But if he
means the insurance conpany actually warrants a part, that is a
little nore conplicated as insurance conpanies are not in that
business. He noted he is not arguing with that portion of the
bill.

MR. GEORGE then stated the previous testifier nentioned that sone
after market parts manufacturers also make original parts. He
pointed out that nost manufacturers outsource their parts, so
just because a part is not stanped from a machi ne owned by Ford,
for exanple, does not nmake that part better or worse. He stated
that one has to | ook at the individual part.

CHAI RVAN COADERY sai d he understands that, but a lot of parts do
not have a stanp of approval fromthe original manufacturer.

MR, CGEORGE said the stanp is not as inportant as the actual
quality of the part.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 11, 2002



MR. RALPH SEEKINS, owner of Seekins Ford Lincoln Mercury in
Fai r banks and Seekins Ford in Sol dotna, inforned nenbers that he
has been in the body shop business for 25 years in Fairbanks and
it appears to him that the conmittee is on the right track in
protecting the consuner by establishing standards to the original
manuf acturer’s quality. He stated that the rmanufacturers
prescribe, for exanple on a fender, a netallurgical standard, not
just a “fit” standard. One can buy two fenders that | ook the sane

but one will rust three tinmes faster than the other. For that
reason, Seekins tries to stick to the standard of the original
manuf acturer. He noted that all SB 348 requires is that a

standard nust be net and guaranteed to the owner of the vehicle.
When autonobile dealers repair a vehicle, they are required to
put on the receipt whether the part is new, re-manufactured, or
used. He does not see any problemw th also requiring body repair
shops to also note the use of after market parts. After market
crash parts are |ess expensive, but his shop knows that many
times those parts do not neet standards. He repeated that SB 348
is an attenpt to set a standard that the consunmer can depend on,
and if there is any question that the standard is not being net,
the consuner has absolute knowl edge up front. He stated the
Aut onobi | e Associ ati on of Al aska supports SB 348.

SENATOR ELTON asked if any insurance conpanies wll not do
business with Seekins because his conpany does not use after
mar ket parts.

MR. SEEKINS said he does not have that problem However, at one
tinme, one of the insurers asked his conpany to use after narket
parts because it would be cheaper and he said he would not do
that unless the insurance conpany provided a letter saying it so
instructed the owner. The insurance conpany then backed off. He
said in the insurance industry, the primary objective of
adjusters is to lower the cost of repairs so without sone kind of
standard as to what kinds of parts are put on a vehicle, body
shops can be put in a position where they are forced to use a
| ower quality part. He repeated SB 348 allows the use of parts
Wi thout a warranty but the consumer nust be notified in witing.

MR. BRI AN KEENE, sales manager for NAPA, Anchorage, said that
NAPA sees SB 348 as a threat to NAPA. He discussed NAPA's
busi ness t hroughout Al aska, which includes sales in major fishing
vill ages, and how SB 348 will affect everyone. He noted the issue
is not a war between the auto dealers and after market industry,
it is about the consuner. NAPA s car parts always neet or exceed
CEM st andards. NAPA feels SB 348 will have a negative inpact on
t he worki ng cl ass.

MR BILL HOLDEN, General Mtors, Detroit, stated that GCeneral
Mot ors supports SB 348. Ceneral Mtors believes custoners should

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 11, 2002



al ways have their vehicles repaired to their original condition.
This issue is about the inferiority of the after market parts. In
the past, nmany consunmers did not know that their vehicles were
being repaired with inferior parts. A few cases stand out, one
being a 1999 lawsuit over after market parts for $1.2 billion
against State Farm The judge inposed a $730 nmillion punitive
damage award wunder the Consuner Fraud and Deceptions Trade
Practices Act on the basis that State Farmis internal docunents
showed that the insurers knew the after market parts were not of
like kind and quality. Also, a Consunmer Reports article
(February, 1999) tells consuners to stay away from after market
parts. The article discussed CAPA's certification process. He
urged committee nenbers to read the article, which provides a
third party warning to consunmers to stay well away from after
mar ket parts. He also pointed out that there is no OEM
manuf acturer that takes and either re-labels, re-brands, or sells
anyt hing other than an OEM part. As an exanple, he stated that GM
built Buick Century cars in China sone years ago. The netal for
those parts was shipped to China because GM could not get the
right grade of nmetal there to nmake the parts. Also, legislators
in other states asked GMto do an evaluation of GM parts versus
CAPA parts. A followup article witten in Collision Wek
(February 29, 2000 edition) said:

After recent evaluation of CAPA certified parts
conducted by CGeneral Mdtors, the conmpany concl uded t hat
the CAPA parts fall short of the GM requirenents when
tested against genuine GM parts. It went on to say
tests were conducted for material content, and dent
resi stance, protective coatings, welds and adhesives...

Now I’'Il go so far as to say that you can say we did
the test so it’'s probably biased, okay? But that still
doesn’t give cause, you know, what | just nentioned

bef ore about State Farm bei ng sued.

MR. HOLDEN said in virtually every state that enacted some form
of consuner protection legislation the insurance in the after
mar ket crash parts interested had | obbied against the bill. The
primary point they tried to drive honme was that such |egislation
woul d cause an increase in auto insurance prem uns. However
hi story has shown just the opposite to be true. In alnost every
state where sone form of consuner protection |egislation has been
enacted there have been auto insurance premum rate reductions
over the past three to five years. He noted this was from a
study nmade in 2000 so may not be up to date.

MR. HOLDEN concl uded that when GM builds a new car they have to
neet federally nandated vehicle safety standards. He did not
believe that anybody else would create a standard for after
mar ket crash parts hi gher that OEM

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 11, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked if GM contracts out for the production of any
parts and, if so, whether any of those conpanies supply the sane
parts through this other nechani sm

MR. HOLDEN said yes, for tires, spark plugs, shocks and things
that can be bought in a NAPA parts store, and conpanies |ike
Chanpi on may even cone to GM and offer up their standards being
the threshold. Those are after market parts that GM considers to
be “hard parts” or “nmechanical parts.” However, SB 348 refers to
after market crash parts used to repair a vehicle back to its
original condition. In those situations, GMis the only one that
wites the standard and has the criteria for it. GM has asked for
changes to the legislation so that it will never have to share
proprietary rights associated with those. In addition, after a
part has been nade in an assenbly plant and the car goes out of
production, there is a tine period between then and the tine that
it then leaves a further |evel of GM support. A division of GMin
Pittsburgh takes the old parts and remanufactures new parts from
themon virtually the sane dies and using the sane netal. If the
time period is longer, for exanple 20 years, and the Pittsburgh
pl ant cannot be used, any plant it does use nust follow GM
criteria and GM stanpi ng. It cannot use that stanping to ever
print out another part used or |abeled as another brand other
than CEM That is witten into people s contracts.

CHAl RMAN COWDERY asked M. Holden to fax his coments to the
commttee. He then asked Ms. Rose to testify.

TAPE 02-15, SIDE B

M5. BETH ROSE informed nenbers she is testifying on behalf of
Kenny MIller who is ill. She noted M. MIler was the manager of
Consol i dated Body Wrks and he owned his own body business for
many years. She said she and her husband took over Consoli dated
Body Works.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked Ms. Rose if Consolidated Body Wirks is an
i ndependent conpany.

M5. ROSE said it is and that they only do auto body repair work
and collision repair. She continued by saying that five or six
years ago, M. Mller ordered two fenders that she showed
menbers. M. MIler scuffed up a section of one of the fenders (a
CAPA certified part) and applied sone of the materials used on
roads to prevent accidents. At the end of the day the part had
rust ed.

CHAI RMVAN CONDERY asked what kind of a car the part was nade for.
M5. ROSE said the part was made for an F-150 Ford Iight pick-up.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 11, 2002



She noted M. MIler took a small pry tool and popped the welds
to see if they would withstand his prying. None of the welds
popped. He al so put some zinc oxide on the regular parts. It has
been sitting in her body shop for years and has never rusted. She
noted this part was built to |ast.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked which part is heavier.

M5. ROSE said the original is definitely heavier and estimted
that it weighs 5 nore pounds. She noted the heavier fender is
al so safer in the case of an accident.

CHAI RVAN COADERY i nfornmed nmenbers that Ms. Rose brought the parts
to Juneau at her own expense. He asked her to | eave the parts for
future commttees to see.

M5. ROSE said that M. MIler wanted legislators to | ook at the
| - CAR Advantage section on page 2. That section describes how
energy is absorbed during a crash. She said that her enployees
have told her that air bag deploynment is at risk in the case of
an accident. She has not found evidence of that in the current
studi es but air bags have not been nmandatory on vehicles for very
|l ong. She said her enployees will not put after market crash
parts on because they are very concerned about liability. She
tal ked to her insurance agent about using after market parts. The
agent said the insurance conpany woul d defend the auto body shop
if there was an accident but the auto body shop would be the
party held negligible.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked Ms. Rose to tell commttee nenbers about
the difference in hoods and the deploynent timng of the air
bags.

2:26 p.m

M5. ROSE said she was told when a car is in a front end
collision, an after narket part used as a bunper will throw the
timng off of the air bag deploynent. She said the driver’s body
will hit the steering wheel at which point the air bag wll
inflate and throw the driver backward at 200 nph in sone cases.
She said she really takes issue with the people who say that body
shops do not want to disclose that they are using after market
parts. She said she is testifying because she wants consuners to
know and wants to get legislation in place. She said she also
takes offense at the remark that profit margins would be nuch
better for the body shops. She said that is not true. Body shops
make a certain percentage off of the parts and it is not very
much. She said it mght nake a difference in a business that uses
a lot of parts, such as an insurance conpany.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked i f body shops make nore on | abor.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 11, 2002



M5. ROSE said that is correct. She added that the comment that
| ow-i ncome people suffer frominferior parts being put on their
cars to be irksone because it is those people who have to buy the
second hand cars and have to put up with inferior parts.

SENATOR ELTON asked M. Rose if insurance conpanies have
contacted her and applied pressure to use after market parts.

M5. ROSE replied, “Absolutely and snmall shops and nedi umsized
shops are on the line. Many of the small shops can't afford to
always say no. Wre in a good fortunate position. W have an
excellent working relationship with State Farm Geico, USAA and
ot her good, reputable conpanies. But we al ways have problens with

several conpanies that I'm not — you know, | don't like to be
mean. They conme in there and they just think that they can tel
us what to do — you wll use after market parts — and we say

oops, sorry, bye.”

SENATOR ELTON asked if those insurance conpanies then take their
busi ness el sewhere.

M5. ROSE said that is correct and that she gets the jobs when
they cone back because the paint starts to conme off of the
bumper.

CHAI RVAN COANDERY not ed that Senator Lenman was present.

MS. ROSE repeated that smaller shops have a nore difficult tine.
She added that there is a place for after market parts. Her shop
uses their radiators all of the time but her shop is very careful
about which ones it uses because structural integrity and safety
cannot be conprom sed.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked Ms. Rose to explain how an after market
part can affect other original parts in a vehicle.

M5. ROSE answered that her exanple of the front end collision in
a car with an after market bunper shows that if a part in the
front is conprom sed and col |l apses, it will not provide as mnuch
protection for the parts that are behind it.

CHAl RVAN COWDERY asked M. Rose if her body shop repairs
suspensi on danmage as the result of a collision.

M5. ROSE said it does but she is not sure which after market
parts her shop would use for that type of danage.

CHAI RVAN CONDERY asked if a customer needed a right front fender

for a 2001 Dodge, whether her auto body shop could get that part
froman auto parts store in a tinmely manner

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 11, 2002



MS. ROSE said she believes so but did not know for sure because
they did not deal with them

SENATOR WARD asked Ms. Rose if she was saying that if soneone
replaced the front portion of a car with non-factory certified
parts, that the driver runs a great risk of crashing into the
steering wheel faster than the air bag would inflate.

MS. ROSE had been told the air bag would inflate but the driver’s
body woul d come forward nore quickly.

SENATOR WARD asked if anyone on the tel econference system had
further information about the air bag problem

MR. HOLDEN said that GM has done tests but he did not know
whet her it produced any concl usive evidence.

M5. SOHI LE commented that she has not had a report filed in 50
years of business regarding air bags deploying before they are
supposed to because of use of after market parts. The Insurance
Institute for H ghway Safety recently did a crash test on hoods,
and the after market hood crunpled in the exact sanme fashion as
the car conpany hood and the air bag deployed in the exact sane
way. She offered to forward a copy of those test results to the
committee.

M5. BASS-CORE infornmed nenbers that CARE participated in the
USGAO report on after market parts. The report concluded there
were few problens with after market parts. She offered to forward
a copy of that report to nenbers. She said NAPA and CARQUEST have
their parts manufactured by Dana and Federal - Mogul Corporation

whi ch al so make GM parts. Dana Corporation’s first customer is
GM and NAPA is their second. Dana Corporation will not turn out
a bad product. She said the inferiority that is inplied by

anyone present of after market parts would have to say that the
CEM part would also be inferior because it was made by the sane

conpany.

MR. SEEKINS said Federal-Mgul Corporation produces original
manuf actured hard parts such as bearings and gears not crash
parts.

M5. SCHI LE said there are manufactures that produce after market
crash parts who al so produce parts for the car conpani es.

CHAI RVAN COADERY said the State Farm Insurance case is being
appeal ed. However, the court thought it was reasonable when a
person got an insurance policy that person could expect to have
the autonobile repaired to the condition prior to the accident
with the same warranties intact. It was Chairnman Cowdery’s

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- April 11, 2002



opinion the case was |ost because of the lack of notification to
t he consuners. Consuners should be notified if after market
parts are to be used.

MR. RICK MORRI SON, Al aska Auto Deal ers Association, said that SB
348 is not about one product being better than the other product
it is about customer choice, conpetition and knowl edge. Over 30
years in the auto industry, he had seen bulletins from
manuf acturers about after nmarket parts. Manufacturers presented
bulletins warning about rejected parts that returned to the
mar ket wi th problens not easily detected.

Hi s daughter’s car had needed new fenders and OEM fenders were
not available so after market fenders were installed. After two
years the front of the fenders were rusted to the point they had
to be replaced. The installation work had been of excellent
quality but the quality of the netal in the fender was poor. In
his experience after nmarket parts had to be replaced nore often
that CEM parts.

MR. MORRI SON informed committee nenbers that manufacturers are
required by law to produce an CEM part for up to ten years and
make them avail abl e. Dealers are required to disclose to the
custoner whether they are using and OEM or an after market part
and are required by the manufacturers to use OEM parts on
warranty work. Al aska Auto Deal ers Associ ation supports SB 348
because it is about disclosure. Consuners don't know that non-
factory parts are being put in their cars and they need to be
i nf or ned.

M5. GAIL BARNES, Editor, fuelline.com said she was a behind the
scenes advocate for the clean repair industry but not to the
desecration of manufacturers of other parts. The archive files
on fuelline.comcontain nmany cases relating to repair parts.

MS. BARNES said SB 348 requires the collision repair shop to be
responsible for the parts they install. It doesn't spell out
what |ike kind and quality is therefore putting the burden on the
collision repair businesses. The body shops have begun to
educate their custonmers and they don't need this liability. | f
they are directed by an insured to use after market parts and
they agree they take full responsibility.

CHAI RVAN COADERY said this is a contract between the insurer and
t he consuner. | f body shops get consent that ends the future
liability.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER said he had talked to Chairman Cowdery's
staff about paragraph C. He said what they were probably
intending to do was ask the repair shops to provide a copy of the
manuf acturers warranty rather than to create a warranty fromthe

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- April 11, 2002



repair shop in paragraph C

CHAI RVAN CONDERY said they were aware of that and it would be
changed in a commttee substitute.

MR. MATT THORPE said a manufacturer has a standard they would
| i ke to be neet and even though they don't manufacture that exact
product, they have a standard for their custoners. The purpose
behind the bill is to et the consumer know exactly what they are
recei ving so they can nake an infornmed choi ce.

MR. WAYNE SPENCER, Al aska Sales and Service, a GCeneral Mdtors
Deal ership in Anchorage, said he had worked there for 23 years,
had been a manager in the body shop for 12 years, and was
experienced with after market sheet netal parts. Al aska Sal es
and Service would prefer to use OEM parts because they are a
superior produce but when asked by a customer to use after market
parts they wll ‘install them because they feel it 1is the
custoner's decision how they want it repaired. They support SB
348 because it is making the consuner aware of their options.

MR. STAN PETI TO, Cal Worthington Ford of Al aska, said SB 348 is a
good bill. The custoner pays for the insurance and repairs and
they are the ones that should neke the decisions. He felt
putting the limtation of the first year and the follow ng three
years of manufacture may create an issue because the insurance

conpanies wll place weight on that. When a car is older than
that the insurance conpany wll dictate what pat they want
installed, whether it be a used or an after narket part. There

should not be a limtation on that, the choice should be up to
t he consuner

MR. RON JONES, CARQUEST Auto Parts, was concerned about placing
the liability on the body shops. He said this was an insurance
issue and let "the buyer beware." People should buy their
i nsurance froma conpany that is going to use OEM parts. If the
conpany states otherwi se the custoner may pay a smaller prem um
but shoul d possibly expect |ess results.

MR. STEVE ALLWNE, Alaska Auto Dealers Association, said the
Al aska Auto Deal ers Association supports SB 348. He expl ai ned
while original equipnent fenders, after market fenders that may
be provided by NAPA and CAPA certified fenders had been discussed
there is another distribution Iine that had not been discussed,
t he i ndependent marketers. | ndependent nmarketers may not be in
the United States, they could be in Canada, the Philippines or
Korea. They market actively to body shops and insurers. SB 348
wi |l protect consuners fromthis provider.

MR. ALLW NE expl ained he sells crash parts to body shops. The
i ndependent body shop's reputation is paramount and it is in

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -17- April 11, 2002



their best interest to provide the best quality part they can.

"As far as the independent body shops go | <can tell vyou
unequi vocally that | don't know of any of them that would have
objections to this bill at all. They go to great links to get
original equipnent parts, crash parts, for vehicles." If the

CAPA product is of equivalent quality then they should provide an
adequate warranty.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked if M. Allw ne agreed that consent by the
custonmer would take the major liability off the shoulders of the
i nsurance comnpany.

MR. ALLWNE agreed if they had informed the custoner and they
consented to the part.

CHAI RVAN COANDERY said he would not nove the bill out of commttee
because of the issues that had been brought up. They would wait
for witten testinony and asked the conmttee nenber if there
wer e any suggestions for anendnents.

SENATOR WARD asked M. Allwine if he was under the inpression
there are sone conpanies that go on-line and order a part from
China or Mexico and utilize that part as part of an insurance
repair and the custoner is not aware.

MR, ALLWNE said Senator Ward raised a point that he had not
consi der ed. He was marketed through his fax nmachine on a
continual basis and this raised and excellent point about
potential Internet marketing.

SENATOR WARD said this would only correct the problem wth
I nsurance conpani es.

TAPE 02-16, SIDE A

SENATOR TAYLOR said they had all heard of "Chop shops” and that
cars get stolen for the purpose of marketing their parts. That
is an original manufactured part.

MR. ALLWNE said that was correct but that could be a problem
when they are forced to disclose the origin of the part.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said during the drafting of the bill it was
suggested they include a provision for cars totaled by an
i nsurance conpany. The totaled car nust be l|abeled in sonme way
and future insurers nust be notified. This provision may be
included in a SB 348 conm ttee substitute.

SENATOR TAYLOR said in the | andmark decision Avery vs. State Farm

the insurance giant was found guilty of consumer fraud and breach
of contract, which led to a 1.2 billion dollar lawsuit. It is on

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 18- April 11, 2002



appeal and a decision should be available during the sunmmer of
2002. Anot her insurance conpany lawsuit involved Country
Conpani es I nsurance and again it was consuner fraud and breach of
contract for its practice of mandating the use of after market
crash parts in the repair of their insured vehicles. They were
enjoined from continuing that policy and enjoined fromutilizing
CAPA. Senator Taylor read; "The 600 mllion dollar punitive
damage award in the State Farm case was to deter other insurance
conpanies from cheating their insureds the sane way State Farm
did." There are pending cases against other insurance conpanies
doi ng the sane thing today.

SENATOR TAYLOR read a statenent by the plaintiff's awer in the
State Farm case, Elizabeth Cabraser:

State Farm breached its contract with policyhol ders for
witing estimates for the cheapest parts not parts that
would restore their insured's vehicles to pre-|loss
condition. The insure conpany relied on a conputer to
determ ne the cheapest part. She said a decision State
Farm based on cost efficiency that in seeking the
cheapest part State Farm commtted fraud against it's
policyholders as they had promsed to insure and to
repair the vehicles to the like or sane condition.
Actually, the words are State Farm promsed its
policyholders of |ike kind and quality. She said when
State Farm gave a cheaper part the insurance conpany
saved 130 mllion by doing this.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY said it was under appeal to the Illinois State
Suprene Court but there was sone unusually strong |anguage from
t he judges regardi ng the appeal.

SENATOR TAYLOR commented on Al aska Airlines' 737 nodel 200 series
havi ng brake problens. There were several different tinmes where
the brakes froze up or were grabbing and jerking on | andings. He
wote directly to the FAA and filed a conplaint. He later read
where Alaska Airlines received the highest fine ever Ilevied
against a United States carrier. Upon exam nation of the
aircraft by Boeing, they found Mexican parts had been used. The
brake part did not have the quality of the Boeing part.

#

CHAI RVAN COADERY adj ourned the neeting at 3:15 p.m

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -19- April 11, 2002



